ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 4, 2004
3:34 p.m

TAPE(S) 04-6
MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Scott Ogan, Chair

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Vice Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson

Senat or Ral ph Seeki ns

Senator Ben Stevens

Senator Kim El ton

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Ceor gi anna Lincoln
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 265
"An Act relating to the schedule of proposed oil and gas | ease
sales and to a related report to the |egislature; and providing
for an effective date."

MOVED CSSB 265( RES) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 266

"An Act approving an interim classification by the comm ssioner
of natural resources closing certain land within the area of the
proposed Bristol Bay (Al aska Peninsula) conpetitive oil and gas
areawi de |ease sale to oil and gas exploration I|icensing and
shallow natural gas leasing; and providing for an effective
date."

MOVED SB 266 OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: SB 265

SHORT TI TLE: O L&GAS LEASE SALE SCHEDULE/ NOTI FI CATI ON
SENATOR(s): SENATE RULES COW TTEE BY REQUEST COF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 14/ 04 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 14/ 04 (S) RES
BILL: SB 266

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- February 4, 2004



SHORT TI TLE: BRI STOL BAY O L & GAS LEASE SALE CLOSURE
SENATOR(s): SENATE RULES COW TTEE BY REQUEST COF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 14/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 14/ 04 (S) CRA, RES

02/ 02/ 04 (S) CRA AT 1:30 PM FAHRENKAMP 203
02/ 02/ 04 (S) Moved SB 266 Qut of Conmittee
02/ 02/ 04 (S) M NUTES ( CRA)

W TNESS REG STER

M. Mark Myers, Director

Division of Gl and Gas

Department of Natural Resources

550 W 7th Ave. Ste 800

Anchorage AK 99501- 3560

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 265 and SB 266 to the commttee
and supported anendnent to include deadline for |legislative
notification

M. Tom Hawki ns

Seni or Vice President

Bristol Bay Native Corporation

800 Cordova Street Suite 200

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 265 and SB 266

M. Terry Hoefferle

Chi ef Executive Oficer

Bristol Bay Native Association

PO Box 310

D I'lingham AK 99576

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 265 and SB 266

M . Bryce Edgnon

Chi ef Operating Oficer

Bri stol Bay Econom c Devel opnent Cor poration
104 Main Street, Suite 305

P. O Box 1464

DI lingham Al aska 99576

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 265 and SB 266

M. Nels Anderson Jr.
D |I1ingham AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 265 and SB 266

M. H almar d son

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 4, 2004



Bristol Bay Native Corporation

800 Cordova Street Suite 200

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 265 and SB 266

Ms. Marie Crosley

Division of Gl and Gas

Department of Natural Resources

550 W 7th Ave. Ste 800

Anchorage AK 99501- 3560

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions about SB 265 and SB 266
and supported anendnent to include deadline for |Ilegislative
notification

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 04-6, SIDE A

CHAI R SCOIT OGAN called the Senate Resources Standing Conmmttee
neeting to order at 3:34 p.m Al nenbers were present except
Senator Lincoln. The first order of business before the
commttee was SB 266. Chair Ogan asked M. Mers to testify.

"#SB265
"#SB266
SB 266- BRI STOL BAY O L & GAS LEASE SALE CLOSURE

CHAI R OGAN asked M. Mers to explain why the state would want
to cl ose | ease sal es.

MR MARK MYERS, Director of the Dvision of QI and Gas,
Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR), told nenbers the reason
to close the Bristol Bay area is that DNR currently has nmultiple
| easing progranms. In the areaw de-leasing program an upfront
best interest finding is done, and the l|lease is conpetitively
bid and provides grass-roots surface to grass-roots oil and gas
mneral rights. A second program the exploration 1licensing
program is conpetitive in nature and allows a single |icensee
to bid on a work commtnent on up to 500,000 acres. Once the
work commtnent is conpleted, the licensee can |ease all or part
of the acreage. A third programis shallow gas |easing: an over-
t he-counter, non-conpetitive program with limted depth rights.
The first filing cost is $5,000; it is designed for areas
typically without conpetitive sales or exploration |licensing.

MR. MYERS said the intent of SB 266 is to do an oil and gas
mneral closing order for the area of the proposed Bristol Bay

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 4, 2004



conpetitive sale. He cautioned that if that area is not closed
to mneral entry, the area would either be open for exploration
licensing or shallow gas l|eases. |If shallow gas |eases were
filed, the mneral rights would be split into parts. DNR does
not believe that would bring as much value to the |essee and
creates correlative rights problens. He pointed out that any gas
di scovered to a depth of 3,000 feet, if |leased with shallow gas
| easing, would go to the shallow gas |essee but gas bel ow that
depth mght go to a different lessee. He said that is not an
efficient way to lease and DNR believes it wuld get nore
econom ¢ value out of the overall conpetitive sale. To prepare
for the sale and provide maximum value to |essees should the
proposed sale go forward, DNR would |like to close this area now
to shall ow gas | easing and exploration |icense proposals.

MR. MYERS said DNR is doing the opposite in the area to the
north and is not recomending it for mneral closure. DNR has
received an exploration-licensing proposal from Bristol Shores
for that area. In conclusion, he stated in the area wth
conpetitive sales, DNR doesn't believe segregating the m neral
estate 1s in the state’'s Dbest interest. He noted the
conmmi ssioner established a tenporary closing order but to
w t hst and, it has to be wverified and approved by the
| egi sl ature.

CHAIR OGAN asked if the conflict over correlative rights would
occur if Conpany A had a |ease for the area below 3,000 feet but
its structure reached into the 3,000-foot |evel where shallow
gas was found. Conpany A mght produce the gas owned by a
different | essee or DNR m ght have to prorate the gas.

MR. MYERS said that is correct. He noted that part of a field
for a shallow gas |ease nust be above a depth of 3,000 feet.
Some of the geologic structures in that area may continue down
to deeper depths, in which case there would be argunents about
whet her the deeper |essee owned it or the shallow gas |essee
owned it. In general, DNR tends to not put areas with shallow
gas leases in license areas because of the correlative rights
fight that would ensue. Also, in early negotiations, if a top
file shallow gas |ease exists, the state would ultimately get
l ess in the conpetitive bid process because a shallow gas |ease
devalues the conpetitive |lease and sets up the correlative
rights issue. He noted in addition, a conpany could arguably try
to block a sale by artificially buying shallow gas |eases wth
no intention of devel oping them thereby significantly
decreasing the value of the [l ower] |ease.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- February 4, 2004



CHAIR OGAN asked if anyone has applied for a shallow gas | ease
in the [Bristol Bay] area.

MR. MYERS said not to the best of his know edge.

CHAIR OGAN noted that when the original |egislation passed,
there was talk of shallow gas that had been identified from
previ ous onshore drilling in the Bristol Bay area. He asked if
that area has wells that were drilled in the 1950s.

MR. MYERS replied that about 26 wells were drilled in the entire
region from 1903 to 1985. Sone were drilled outside of the
proposed | ease area but about 12 wells were drilled within the
area proposed for licensing. Those wells penetrated into the
prospective section; mny of them encountered gas but at the
time, gas wasn't economic. Sone of the wells have fairly good
shows of oil but they were never commercially tested so DNR does
not know the quantity. DNR knows that both oil and gas are
present in the basin, particularly in the southern part of the
basin where it is deeper. To the north, the oil thins and DNR
expects it is domnated by gas potential, simlar to the gas in
Cook Inlet. Miuch of that gas is shall ow

MR. MYERS told nenbers that DNR and the U S. Departnent of
Energy did sone test work for coal bed nmethane in the Chignik
Lagoon area; they believe coal bed nethane potential is there.
He added that an areawi de |essee is entitled to produce coal bed
nmet hane as well as deep gas so a |lessee may | ook at both. He
believes a |essee would | ook at conventional gas first because
it is nore econom cal

CHAIR OGAN said it looks |like some of the offshore area is
included in the exploration |icense area in the northern part of
Bristol Bay. He asked if that was done intentionally and whet her
there is a current noratorium on offshore drilling in Bristol
Bay.

MR. MYERS said the current policy is not to include offshore
areas on licenses in [box 5-4]; that policy could change. The
current standard that DNR is proposing for the Bristol Bay |ease
sale would be onshore siting of facilities only. Therefore, if
license rights or lease rights are later offered in the offshore
to the 3-mle |imt state waters, they would have to access
those potenti al resources by drilling directionally from
onshore. He believes it is DNRs intention to restrict facility
pl acenent to onshore only.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 4, 2004



SENATOR SEEKINS referred to a map of the area to be reserved
provided by M. Mers, and asked if the red |line represents the
3-mle limt.

MR. MYERS said that is correct.

SENATOR SEEKI NS asked, regarding the state’'s authority, if the
bays are classified as historic bays. He questioned if the bays
are agreed to or clained as, regarding state jurisdiction.

MR. MYERS said one of the things DNR has to clarify is the 3-
mle limt. It has never been surveyed. He advised that
| egislators will probably see a capital funding request so that
DNR can accelerate that process. DNR believes that historical
bays are pretty well established by precedence but that nust be

clarified as well. Part of the process of putting the |ease sale
together is to help determne, in conjunction with the federal
governnent, where those actual lines are. R ght now they are

only lines on a map.

CHAI R OGAN asked M. MWers to provide commttee nenbers with the
background of the plans for the Bristol Bay area and when he
expects the | ease sale to occur and how he views the prospects.

MR. MYERS referred to a chart showing the proposed tinelines of
the process and noted the targeting tine would be the fall of
2004 for the license area and the fall of 2005 for the |ease
sale. He pointed out the fall of 2005 is dependent upon DNR s
ability to notify the legislature at any tinme [SB 265], rather
than during the legislative session. He said if that is not
possible, the date would be 2007 because DNR would have to
notify the |l egislature next year and provide two years notice of
t he upcoming sale. He said the process is long and detail ed, and
the primary docunent is a best interest finding docunent. In the
case of the lease sale, DNR would request information from
agencies and public coment, which DNR has done. DNR has net
with all three borough governnents in the Bristol Bay area, as
well as the Bristol Bay Native Association, and other interested
folks, and it has started the request for public coment.

That will eventually lead to a prelimnary best interest
finding, simlar to an E'S docunent, that wll [list all
concerns, potential stipulation and litigation neasures, and the
bal ancing test of the economcs and environnmental effects. That
prelimnary findings report wi || be wdely distributed
t hroughout the same area for coment. MR MYERS said that DNR
has nenoranda of understandings with the Bristol Bay Native

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 4, 2004



Corporation and the Aleut Corporation to custonm ze and maxim ze
benefits to the local communities and Native corporations to the
ext ent possi bl e.

MR MYERS pointed to the towns on the map where public
i nformati onal neetings have occurred. He indicated, at Governor
Mur kowski s direction, the exploration |license areas are on a
faster track with the goal of finding a |ocal source of energy,
followed by the conpetitive sale. He repeated that the
exploration |icense areas are sonewhat driven by the applicant.

CHAI R OGAN asked if the license area in the north is primarily
for shal |l ow gas.

MR. MYERS said the basin thickness is less than 5,000 feet in
the license area. By definition, that area is geologically
shal l ow, so the best potential there is for gas.

CHAI R OGAN asked, “So would that be under the shallow gas rules
then — so it would be a non-conventional type — air drilled or
do you have any idea yet?”

MR. MYERS said DNR doesn’t know yet but there would be the
opportunity to drill conventional gas plays in the sense that
they are shallow He said a |ot depends on the type of
production technique.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked whether data, regarding exploration
licensing, will be nmade public if it becones avail abl e.

MR. MYERS said drilling well data wll be confidential for 25
nonths from the date of conpletion, according to Al aska statute
and AOGCC standards. Seismc data will not beconme public. The
data acquired falls under the sane rules as the well data on a
conventional |ease. He added if economc incentive credits are
used, there is a requirenment to release the data early to DNR
In 10 years, the seismc data beconmes public.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if an entity obtains data, that entity is
also allowed to get involved in the conpetitive bid process for
harvest of what is there.

MR. MYERS said that is the full intent of the program In a non-

conpetitive bid, an entity negotiates with DNR, as a term of the
| i cense, what the terns would be to convert to a | ease.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- February 4, 2004



SENATOR SEEKINS comrented, “So it kind of gives them a leg up
You say if you guys do this, you're first in line to pick the
fruit fromwhat you find.”

MR. MYERS agreed and said the entity is exclusively allowed to
do that under the license program

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked if the SB 185 credit (the seismc
incentive credit) will apply to this region.

MR. MYERS said it does; the requirenents are that it has to be 3
mles from an existing well drilled before 1976. It will allow
the 40 percent credit up to 2007.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS questioned whether that legislation only
applied to the North Sl ope.

MR. MYERS said it was not restricted to the North Slope. The
credits were statewide and applied to federal and private |ands
as well.

SENATOR ELTON asked how DNR deals with the critical habitat
areas in a |l ease sale.

MR. MYERS said a |lot nore discussion takes place with the Al aska
Departnent of Fish and Gane (ADF&3E on the critical habitat
areas. A process of elevation exists should ADF&G not |ike the
standards. However, a lot of information gathering goes on and
there is recognition of the inportance of those areas, so
stipulation and mtigation neasures are adapted as appropriate
to those areas. Local conmmunity invol venent becones critical. He
hopes that by working with the local comunities and Native
organi zations, DNR can work through those issues wthout
difficulty.

SENATOR ELTON thanked the departnent for providing that
i nformation

4:00 p.m

CHAIR OGAN asked if the Hamond Admnistration placed a
noratorium on leasing in that area because it felt oil
devel opmrent was not conpatible wth fishing, the economc
mai nstay of the region. He asked if the decline of the Bristo

Bay fishing industry has notivated the change in attitude about
oil and gas devel opnent.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 4, 2004



MR. MYERS said nmany of the letters of support recognize the
econom ¢ situation and the need for a long-term economc fix and
the value of a local tax base fromoil and gas devel opnent. Even
the fishing industry recognizes that the val ue-added part of the
industry is dependent on a l|ocal energy source. He noted this
process started |ocally.

CHAIR OGAN said in his opinion, that area is one of the great
wonders of the world, regarding the wldlife and ecological
systens. He said the people who live in the area are very
culturally and spiritually tied to the land so he finds it
interesting that there has been a shift in attitude. He noted
that deep well oil and gas is riskier [from an environnental
st andpoi nt] than shall ow gas.

MR. MYERS said he believes one reason the potential for an oil
and gas sale is nore appealing to residents now is because of
changes in technology. Since the earlier wells were drilled in
t hat ar ea, envi ronnent al safety records have i mproved
dramatically. The footprint of the developnent facilities is
much smaller, perhaps 20 percent of the size they were in the
1980s. The conbi nation of superior technology, good stipulation
and mtigation neasures, good spill response, the need for a
locally trained workforce, and directional drilling present a
good case to mnimze environnental effects. He said one of the
key issues is the location of a port or tanker facility. He
noted the best interest finding does not assune there will be a
sale — it is a balancing test, and state wll have to be
convinced that the benefits outweigh the environnental risks.

CHAIR OGAN asked if Bristol Bay is the largest contiguous area
avail abl e for onshore oil and gas | easing.

MR. MYERS said the basin is 500 mles long and he is not aware
of any other place in onshore North Anerica, other than ANWR
like that. He cautioned that although the area has good oil and
gas shoals, reservoir rocks and traps, commercial hydrocarbons
have not yet been denonstrated. The division would |Iove to see
sone nodern data to help quantify the resource in the area.

CHAI R OGAN announced that Representative Mses had joined the
commttee. He then asked if the oil that will be drilled from
onshore is offshore.

MR. MYERS referred to the nmap of the geol ogic cross-section and
descri bed the area.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 4, 2004



CHAI R OGAN asked about the potential for hydrates.
MR. MYERS said he is not aware of any onshore.
CHAI R OGAN t ook public testinony.

MR, TOM HAWKI NS, Senior Vice President of the Bristol Bay Native
Cor por ati on ( BBNQ) , not ed t hat BBNC has about 7,000
sharehol ders, of which nore than half live in the region. The
BBNC board of directors adopted a resolution about a year ago
that encourages the Governor and DNR to consider oil and gas
|l easing in Bristol Bay - both were very responsive. They held a
| ot of hearings and have been easy to work with. The BBNC wants
the record to reflect that the local support for these
activities is good. BBNC supports both SB 265 and SB 266.

CHAIR OGAN asked M. Hawkins if he believes the public notice
has been adequate and whether BBNC s position is representative
of the general public.

MR. HAWKI NS said he believes the BBNC board of directors is nore
bullish than the general population, but the board has travel ed
around the region and talked to the boroughs and non-profit
organi zations and village corporations, and found an amazing
| evel of support for oil and gas exploration. He said the
support thinned a bit as the Quter Continental Shelf (OCS) was
di scussed. A sale was held out there in 1992 and | ater cancel ed.
People are still wary of activity in the bay but DNR has been
very open about explaining access to offshore acreage from
onshore and the various groups that the BBNA has conversed with
have routinely supported that. BBNC believes DNR has done an
excellent job. The region is huge with nmultiple boroughs.

CHAI R OGAN cautioned that he strongly believed that the people
of his area supported an activity but people from outside, wth
out si de agendas, had other opinions. He said he can’'t enphasize
enough how inportant it is that people understand the facts.

MR. HAWKI NS acknow edged that the region is habitat sensitive
and that residents are shrewd about protecting those val ues. He
said that fish, wildlife, and waterfow play a big part in the
econony of the region — both the traditional econony and the
true econony. He believes the people wll hold DNR to high
standards to nmke sure that developnent is done in the right
way.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- February 4, 2004



MR. TERRY HCEFFERLE, Chief Executive Oficer of the Bristol Bay
Nati ve Association, a tribal organization, told nenbers that the
BBNA has a 38-nmenber board that supports both SB 265 and SB 266.
He noted the BBNA unani nously opposed Lease Sale 92 back in the
days when the price of a barrel of oil was $13 and the price of
a sockeye salnmon was $12. The current price is $33 per barrel
for oil and $2 for a sockeye. He said people’ s attitudes have
changed with the tines. He indicated the conmunities of Bristo
Bay al so support both bills.

MR. BRYCE EDGMON, Chief Operating Oficer for the Bristol Bay
Econom c Devel opnent Corporation, stated support for both SB 265
and SB 266.

MR. NELS ANDERSON JR , representing hinself, said that he has
been a subsi stence hunter and fisherman who opposed any oil and
gas activity in the region for many years. However, Bristol Bay
fishermen cannot sell their fish for a decent price that enables
them to nake a living. As a result, the econony in the area is
going downhill and nmany people are noving out of the area,
therefore the residents have no choice except to diversify the
econony. He said he is very, very proud of the Bristol Bay
Native Corporation for taking the courageous step of shifting
away from considering conmmercial fishing as the sole source of
econom c activity. He also conmmends the BBNC for working very
closely with the Miurkowski Adm nistration. The Governor has nade
it clear that he would not have taken the initiative on oil and
gas developnment in the area without the full support of the
region. He said that diversifying the econony is not possible
wi thout |ow cost energy. He said he is nore confident that the
oil and gas industry is able to do exploration work wthout
doing any serious harmto the environnment. The Native people in
the area have been very successful in protecting the resources.
He suspects that vigilance wll continue throughout any oil and
gas devel opnent on the Al aska Peninsula. He stated support for
SB 265 and SB 266, as they wll help expedite and nove the
calendar up a bit so that licensing can occur earlier than would
be the case under current |aw

MR. ANDERSON said his only concern is that there is no officia
oversight capability on what is happening in the region. He
bel i eves the Murkowski Adm nistration and regional |eaders need
to think about that. He believes the only way to ensure that are
fish and gane resources are adequately is to form a borough. He
next stated:

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- February 4, 2004



But that’'s sonmething that we’d have to work out here
on a local level. And then another thing that we'd
have to do, | believe, to help not only the ... oi
and gas industry, but the mning industry wth that
huge pebble find up in the Iliama area, is that they
really can’t build roads and they really can’t devel op
the energy without the full cooperation of all the
villages in the Bristol Bay region so | have asked the
admnistration to take a very serious |ook at a
Bristol Bay regional developnent authority, not unlike
the [Knik Arn] Bridge authority that wll  help
expedite the construction of that particular facility.
So the two things the region needs is that we nay have
to have a borough to provide that oversight to protect
our fish and ganme resources, and two, a Bristol Bay
regi onal developnment authority wunder the State of
Al aska to help the construction of the infrastructure
that wll provide the access and the power needed to
develop our oil and gas industry and our mnera
i ndustry out here.

4:25 p.m
TAPE 04-6, SIDE B

CHAI R OGAN suggested that if the devel opnent is successful and a
borough is forned, the area woul d have a tax base to pay for it.

MR. HIJALMAR OLSON, Bristol Bay Native Corporation, told nenbers
he has fished in the region for 50 years and has been a board
menber of the BBNC for 30 years, and chair and president for 25
years. He said after seeing the econony change in the area, the
BBNC board decided to rethink oil and gas developnent. He
appl auded Governor Murkowski for trying to develop natural
resources in the rural areas. He said the BBNC board has held
about 12 neetings around the region. He stated support for SB
265 and SB 266.

SENATOR DYSON maintained that there are sonme very significant

cul tural resources in the areas; archeology teans have
investigated a nunber of villages over the years. He asked what
protections wll be available to mke sure they are not

di sturbed or that a sufficient analysis is done if necessary.
M5. MARIE CROSLEY, Division of Gl and Gas, DNR told nenbers

that federal and state laws are quite protective of the
archeol ogi cal resources. In addition, DNR has three mtigation

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- February 4, 2004



measures that are attached to the |lease that would al so protect
them Prior to a permt being issued, the |essee would
investigate known sites for the purpose of steering clear of
t hem

CHAIR OGAN said from his experience in the private sector, he
| earned that t he mtigation measur es require that an
ar cheol ogi st survey the sites where potential work will be done.
| f any archeological sites are discovered, mtigation neasures
are used to |eave them undisturbed or to preserve the findings
appropri ately.

SENATOR ELTON asked which bill the commttee was considering.

CHAIR OGAN clarified that SB 266 was before the conmttee. He
said he would assune that those people who have testified on
both bills do not want to testify again wunless he hears
differently. He then announced that he would defer to the wll
of the comittee regarding whether to pass the bill from
committee today.

SENATOR ELTON said he views the bills as a pair and suggested
passing them both wth one notion after they have been
di scussed.

SENATOR WAGONER infornmed nenbers that the only opposition
expressed in the Senate Community and Regional Affairs Conmttee
was the fact that the Mirkowski Adm nistration did not supply
the letters of support from the Native corporations to the
conmittee. He said those letters are available now so he does
not believe the opposition would renain.

CHAI R OGAN announced that the commttee would hold SB 266 and
take up SB 265.

SB 265- O L&GAS LEASE SALE SCHEDULE/ NOTI FI CATI ON

MR. MARK MYERS, Division of QI and Gas, Department of Natura
Resources (DNR), explained to nenbers that SB 265 is
straightforward. The areaw de |easing statutes require DNR to
notify the legislature at the first part of a session of changes
to the areawide |ease sale process. SB 265 would change that
requirenent so that DNR would be required to notify the
| egi sl ature of those changes, but not during the first part of
t he | egi sl ative sessi on. The ori gi nal requi renent was
established pre-areawide Ileasing, when the conpetitive sale
process was the only mechanism of |easing and conpetitive sales

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- February 4, 2004



were proposed all over the state so the | ease sale schedul e was
constantly changing. Under that scenario, the l|egislature was
given a five-year schedule of the sales and DNR would notify the
| egi slature during the first part of the session of any changes.
Under areawi de |easing, DNR has traditionally offered the sane
areas for |ease every year so there is a nore predictable
pattern. Oher than North Slope foothills, this is the first
time another sale has been added to the areaw de process.
However, because the local folks are driving the sale, the
earliest this sale could be offered is 2007 if DNR is required
to provide the legislature with a two-year notice early next

session. SB 265 wll allow DNR to notify the |egislature anytine
during the year. He noted the |egislature does not vote on the
| ease sale, it is just notified. Passage of SB 265 wll allow

the sale to occur in 2005 rather than 2007.

CHAI R OGAN noted that SB 265 is necessary to change the process
for one sale only and asked whether M. Mers was saying that it
woul d not affect other sales around the state because those are
identified and predictable.

MR. MYERS said that is correct. He added that DNR has i nproved
its best interest finding process, which typically takes 18
nonths, so those sales “do not sneak up on anyone.” He repeated
that the statutory |anguage does not require the legislature to
vote on any of the |lease sales so SB 265 will only expand the
timeframe for notification. He said he is not sure what the
intent behind requiring notification during the early part of
the legislative session was in the original legislation. He said
realistically, DNR will not be going forward with many exanples
of additional areaw de sal es.

4:35 p.m

CHAIR OGAN suggested that the original legislation required
notification between the 1% and 15'" day of the session because
| egi slators are so busy at the end of session, the notice may go
unnoticed. He asked M. Mers if DNR feels it is inportant to
renove that |anguage because technically DNR could provide
notification on the | egislation when everyone is extrenely busy.

SENATOR ELTON said he would go even further. Although he
recogni zes the current process can be cunbersone, he feels SB
265 is “pretty |loosy-goosy.” He reads it to say DNR is not even
required to present its annual report on the last day of the
| egi sl ative session; it could present that report in August. His
concern is that this fix is being done in such a way that the

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- February 4, 2004



| egi slature will be losing sone of its prerogatives. He prefers
the requirenent that the |legislature be notified at the
begi nning of the session because that report could becone part
of the “pipeline of information” available to conmttees to aid
i n deci si on- maki ng.

CHAIR OGAN said SB 265 says DNR nmust notify the |egislature but
that could entail sending one report to a legislative aide. He
asked what kind of nodality that notification enconpasses.

MR. MYERS said he believes the notification |language in SB 265
is the sane as the language in the original statute; the only
change is to the timng. He said the intent is not to keep the
| egi slature out of the loop; it is to provide the flexibility to
hold a sale as quickly as DNR reasonably can. He repeated that
DNR was encouraged by local input to get the [Bristol Bay] sale
going as quickly and snmoothly as possible, especially given the
full and conplete best interest findings process. He pointed out
the original legislation requires notification to occur during
the first part of each 2-year session, not each year.

SENATOR ELTON nmintained if DNR is going to provide an annua
report, the annual report could be due to the |legislature by
January 15 of each year

CHAI R OGAN suggested working on the |anguage to specify who in
the legislature will receive the report, perhaps the chairs of
specific commttees or the chair of Legislative Council and
majority and mnority |leaders during the interim

SENATOR BEN STEVENS said that | anguage does not cause hi m angst
because he reads it to say the comm ssioner shall annually
prepare a 5-year program of proposed |ease sales to be offered
for leasing during the calendar year of the notification. He
said in his mnd, it wuld be dated January 1 for that year. It
would be in the best interest of the comm ssioner to give it to
the legislature on January 1 because if it was distributed on
Decenber 15, it would only address the changes for the last 15
days of the year. He said if the commssioner is going to
propose a change to the 5-year annual program and he is to give
the report to the legislature annually, it only nmakes sense the
conmmi ssioner would provide it at the beginning of the year.

He then referred to page 2, line 2, and read, “Notification to
each legislator, by electronic nessage or ot her neans,
constitutes notification to the | egi sl ature under this
subsection.” He felt the words “or other neans” are too

SENATE RES COW TTEE -15- February 4, 2004



anbi guous and noved to insert the word “witten” between “other”
and “neans” [ Anendnment 1] and asked for unani nbus consent.

CHAIR OGAN announced that w thout objection, Anendnent 1 was
adopt ed.

SENATOR DYSON said his guess is the original notification
requi renent was included to address scenarios simlar to that of
the Local Boundary Conm ssion or other entities, where the
| egi slature nust intervene to stop the conm ssion from taking
action on its decisions. He thought the commttee should nake

sure that all legislators and the relevant conmttees get
notification. If the legislature finds the adm nistration has
done an outrageous deed, it can either deal with it through

Legi slative Council or call a special session, although he does
not antici pate that happeni ng.

CHAIR OGAN clarified that t he bil | al r eady specifies
“notification to each legislator.”

SENATOR ELTON said he sees nothing in the legislation that
precludes an annual report from being issued in January of one
year and August of another year. He expressed concern that it
m ght be presented in August intentionally so that DNR does not
have to answer any questions. He said this |egislation renoves
the | anguage that requires DNR to submt the report in a tinely
manner .

CHAIR OGAN asked how the Bristol Bay |ease sale would be
affected if the bill only changed the requirenent for a biennial
report to an annual report and retained the existing January
deadl i ne.

MR. MYERS said the |ease sale nmust be on the schedule for two
years after notification, so if DNR notified the |egislature by
January 15 of next year, the earliest the sale could occur would
be in 2007.

CHAI R OGAN suggested nodifying the bill to apply to this sale
only since a good public process has been taking place and the
| egi sl ature was al ready notifi ed.

MR. MYERS said the driver of the bill is the Bristol Bay sale
but it will also allow future flexibility.

SENATOR ELTON said he does not see that as a problem because
subsection (b) has two elenents. The first is when DNR reports,

SENATE RES COW TTEE -16- February 4, 2004



but it also provides, beginning on line 13 on page 1, that the
comm ssioner may at any time notify the legislature of
revisions. He said since the bill has an immediate effective
date, he does not see a problem that would affect the Bristol
Bay sal e because DNR could revise its program

MR. MYERS deferred to Ms. Crosley for clarification.

M5. MARIE CROSLEY, Division of Gl and Gas, Departnent of
Nat ural Resources (DNR), agreed with M. Mers and said there
are two elenents to this. Wien DNR adds a sale to the schedul e,
it would notify the legislature imediately. The second part is
notifying the legislature of availability of the five-year
program each year instead of every other year

SENATOR STEVENS thanked M. Crosley for the clarification. He
said the two-year reporting requirement will change to an annua
requirenent and that is to report on the activities of that
cal endar year and the proposed activities for the next four
years. It also gives the commssioner latitude to say at any
time, wunder that plan, it can be changed with notification.
Therefore, the comm ssioner could notify the legislature that
DNR wants to change the |ease sale from 2007 to 2006. He
repeated that provides the commi ssioner with sonme |atitude and
it also provides a better reporting nechanism because DNR w ||
have to notify the |egislature of any changes every year and
every tinme it proposes a change.

SENATOR WAGONER nobved SB 266 and its attached fiscal note with
i ndi vi dual recomendati ons.

SENATOR DYSON noted, for the record, that he has run research
vessels in the [Bristol Bay] l|lease area related to the basin in
years past for oceanographers and narine biologists. No one owes
hi m any noney fromthat work. In addition, he fished Bristol Bay
for 25 years but no longer has any financial interests in that
ar ea.

CHAI R OGAN asked Senator Dyson, given his experience in the
area, whether he supports this |egislation.

SENATOR DYSON sai d he does.

CHAIR OGAN noted that wthout objection, SB 266 nobved from
comm ttee.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- February 4, 2004



SENATOR WAGONER npbved SB 265 as anended and its attached fisca
note fromcommttee with individual recommendati ons.

SENATOR ELTON objected for the purpose of a potential anmendnent
[ Avendnment 2]. He suggested anending page 1, lines 5 and 6, by
adding “and prior to February 1 of each cal endar year” so that
those |ines woul d read:

“The comm ssioner shall annually prepare, and prior to
February 1 of each calendar year, notify the
| egi sl ature of ”.

He expl ained that he believes there is value for the |legislature
to have the five-year plan before it during session. That would
enable legislators to know what DNR projects as a reasonable
schedule. He fears if a deadline is not provided for the five-
year schedule, the legislature’s opportunity to discuss it
during session would be precluded.

CHAIR OGAN noted a notion was on the table to nove the bill so
the anendnent is out of order at this tine.

SENATOR WAGONER w thdrew his motion to nove SB 265 from
commi ttee.

SENATOR ELTON noved to adopt Anmendnent 2.

CHAI R OGAN announced a brief at-ease. Upon reconvening, he asked
M. Myers to comment on Anmendnent 2.

MR MYERS said as long as Anendnent 2 does not delay the
[Bristol Bay] |ease sale, DNR would have no objection. He asked
Ms. Crosley if she sees any potential delay to the Bristol Bay
sale resulting from Amendnent 2.

M5. CROSLEY said she is reasonably sure it does not. She said
one of the problenms was with Section 2, which required the sale
to be on the schedule for two cal endar years.

SENATOR ELTON reassured DNR and conmttee nenbers that if
Amendnment 2 will cause problens for the Bristol Bay |ease sale,
he woul d encourage that it be revisited on the Senate fl oor.

MR. MYERS again stated that DNR is confortable with Anendnent 2.

SENATOR STEVENS repeated that the bill requires an annual
report, whereas the existing law requires a biennial report. He

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 4, 2004



questioned the need to specify a tine certain for the report
each year. He indicated he wuld go wth individual
reconmendati ons but will not support the anendnent.

SENATOR ELTON said he does not believe M. Mers intent is to
keep information from the |legislature, but if the annual report
is delivered every October, the legislature will be reviewng
four years of the plan when it convenes.

CHAI R OGAN cal l ed for the question.

The notion to adopt Amendnent 2 carried with Senators Dyson,
Wagoner, Elton and Chair Ogan in favor, and Senators Stevens and
Seeki ns opposed.

SENATOR WAGONER nmoved CSSB 265(RES) and its attached fiscal
notes fromcommttee with individual recommendati ons.

CHAI R OGAN announced that w thout objection, the notion carried.

He then adjourned the neeting at 5:00 p. m
#

SENATE RES COW TTEE -19- February 4, 2004



